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ZONING CHANGE REVIEW SHEET 

 
CASE NUMBER: HDP-2017-0286 HLC DATE:  June 26, 2017 
    July 24, 2017 
 PC DATE:   
     
APPLICANT:  Historic Landmark Commission 
 
HISTORIC NAME:  Old Negro Women’s Home / King’s Daughters Home 
 
WATERSHED:  Boggy Creek 
 
ADDRESS OF PROPOSED ZONING CHANGE:  1210 Rosewood Avenue 
 
Council District: 1 
 
ZONING FROM:  LO-NCCD-NP to LO-H-NCCD-NP. 
 
SUMMARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the proposed zoning change 
from light office, neighborhood conservation, neighborhood plan (LO-NCCD-NP) combining 
district to light office – historic landmark – neighborhood conservation, neighborhood plan 
(LO-H-NCCD-NP) combining district zoning for the property’s significance in historical 
associations and community value. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS FOR LANDMARK DESIGNATION: 
Historical associations and community value. 
 
HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION ACTION:  June 26, 2017: Initiated historic 
zoning.  July 24, 2017:  Recommended historic zoning.  Vote:  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION:   
 
DEPARTMENT COMMENTS:  This house meets the criteria for designation as a historic 
landmark, and/or as a contributing structure to a potential local historic district.  It retains 
a high degree of integrity in the original portion of the house, and has rear additions which 
do not compromise the context or architecture of the house.  The East Austin Historic 
Survey (2016) determined that this house is eligible for individual designation as a city 
historic landmark and individual designation in the National Register of Historic Places. 
 
The house is within the bounds of the Central East Austin Neighborhood Planning Area, 
which holds as its first neighborhood plan goals, to “preserve, restore, and recognize historic 
resources and other unique neighborhood features” as well as “respect this historic, ethnic, 
and cultural character of the neighborhoods of Central East Austin.” 
 
The house meets the criteria for landmark designation as set forth in City Code: 

a. Architecture.  The house is a vernacular bungalow. 
b. Historical association. The house has long-standing associations with the 

African-American community in East Austin, having served as an old folks’ 
home for African-American women, and as the Colored Branch of the Young 
Women’s Christian Association from around 1926 to around 1970. 

c. Archaeology. The house was not evaluated for its potential to yield significant 
data concerning the human history or prehistory of the region. 
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d. Community value. The house possesses a unique location, physical 

characteristic, or significant feature that contributes to the character, image, 
or cultural identity of East Austin and the city’s African-American 
community. 

e. Landscape feature. The property is not a significant natural or designed 
landscape with artistic, aesthetic, cultural, or historical value to the city. 
 

CITY COUNCIL DATE:     ACTION: 
 
ORDINANCE READINGS: 1ST  2ND 3RD    ORDINANCE NUMBER: 
 
CASE MANAGER:  Steve Sadowsky     PHONE:  974-6454 
 
NEIGHBORHOOD ORGANIZATION:   Organization of Central East Austin 
Neighborhoods (OCEAN). 
 
BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION: 
Architecture:  
One-story, rectangular-plan, front-gabled frame bungalow-style house with a partial-width, 
front-gabled partially-inset independent porch on ornamental metal supports; single and 
paired 1:1 fenestration; several one-story masonry additions to the rear of the house. 
Historical Associations: 
Articles in the Austin newspapers show that the current structure was built in 1926.  The 
Old Negro Women’s Home had occupied an older 1890s house on this site before building 
the current building; that older building, similar in scale to this one, is shown on the 1922 
Sanborn map.  Research shows that the site began being used as the Old Negro Women’s 
Home around 1913. 
According to Jason McDonald’s study, Racial Dynamics in Early Twentieth-Century Austin, 
Texas, the Old Negro Women’s Home was originally located on E. 10th Street and opened on 
Rosewood Avenue in 1913, which is confirmed by listings in the city directories.  The Old 
Negro Women’s Home was operated by an African-American executive board, which 
included Reuben S. Lovinggood, president of Samuel Huston College, and William Tears, 
the prominent African-American undertaker, and was funded by contributions from 
African-American fraternal societies and churches.  The King’s Daughters, an African-
American women’s organization, took on the responsibilities for operation of the home, 
which was in existence at this location until around 1970, with a period in the mid-1940s, 
when it served as the Colored Branch of the Young Women’s Christian Association.  The 
building was then used as a halfway house, and finally by the Travis County Department of 
Mental Health and Mental Retardation until recently. 
Community Value: 
The house is located on Rosewood Avenue, close to the intersection with 11th Street, in the 
heart of the old African-American neighborhood in East Austin.  It was an integral part of 
segregated life in Austin, where the African-American community developed its own 
benevolent organizations and institutions to care for the elderly within the community. 
PARCEL NO.:  0207080113 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  E 87.5 FT OF LOT 1 BLK 1 OLT 56 DIV B ROBERTSON GEO L SUBD 
  
ESTIMATED ANNUAL TAX ABATEMENT: $4,889 (income-producing); city portion: 
$1,361 (no cap). 
 



B.7 - 3 
APPRAISED VALUE:  $967,602 
 
PRESENT USE:  Offices 
 
CONDITION:  Good 
 
PRESENT OWNERS:   
Peter Staats 
1150 San Bernard Street 
Austin, Texas 78702 
 
DATE BUILT:  ca. 1926 
 
ALTERATIONS/ADDITIONS:  Office additions to the rear. 
 
ORIGINAL OWNER(S):  King’s Daughters (African-American benevolent society) 
 
OTHER HISTORICAL DESIGNATIONS:   None. 
 
 
Communication from the owner: 
 
Steve, i did not nominate 1210 Rosewood- i just respected it and brought it back. day by day. 
 
You are following the letter of your mission, (and i so respect that)  but you in your infinite resourcefulness can we 
set up a couple of meetings where you can suggest Tangible methods forward for me- such as tax concessions, 
building variances, City property to move 1210 Rosewood on to and so forth? 
 
I have 1600 sq feet of goodness trying to financially and spiritually support a 1.5 million dollar tract of land.  
 
sincerely,  
 
peter  staats 
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LOCATION MAP 
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1210 Rosewood Avenue 

ca. 1926 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



B.7 - 6 
OCCUPANCY HISTORY 
1210 Rosewood Avenue 

 
City Directory Research, Austin History Center 
By City Historic Preservation Office 
June, 2017 
 
1992  Gateway House 
  Travis County Department of Mental Health and Mental Retardation 
 
1985-86 Gateway House 
  Travis County Department of Mental Health and Mental Retardation 
 
1981 Travis County Department of Mental Health and Mental Retardation, Special 

Services Center 
 
1977  Gateway House 
  Halfway house 
 
1973  Vacant 
 
1968  King’s Daughters Home for the Aged 
  Idella Larrimore, director 
 
1965  King’s Daughters Home for the Aged 
  Idella Larrimore, director 
 
1961  King’s Daughters Home for the Aged 
  Idella Larrimore, director 
 
1957  King’s Daughters Home for the Aged 
  Idella Larrimore, manager 
 
1954  King’s Daughters Home for the Aged 
  Idella Larrimore, manager 
 
1952  King’s Daughters Home for the Aged 

Annie S. Hunter, supervisor 
NOTE:  Idella Larrimore is listed as a cook for the King’s Daughters Home for the 
Aged.  She lived at 1901 E. 10th Street. 

 
1949  King’s Daughters Home for the Aged 
  Annie S. Hunter, supervisor 
 
1947  YWCA Colored Branch 
 
1944-45 YWCA Colored Branch 
  Thelma Bryant, secretary 
 
1941  Old Negro Women’s Home 
  Malinda Jones, matron 
  NOTE:  Malinda Jones lived on-site. 
 
1939  Old Negro Women’s Home 
  Malinda Jones, matron 
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1937  Old Negro Women’s Home 
  Malinda Jones, matron 
 
1935  Old Negro Women’s Home 
  Malinda Jones, matron 
 
1932-33 Old Negro Women’s Home 
  Malinda Jones, matron 
 
1930-31 Old Negro Women’s Home 
  Malinda Jones, matron 
  NOTE:  The house is listed as 1204 Rosewood Avenue. 
 
1929  Old Negro Women’s Home 
  Malinda Jones, matron 
  NOTE:  The house is listed as 1304 Rosewood Avenue. 
 
1927  Old Negro Women’s Home 
  Lillie Anderson, matron 

NOTE:  Malinda Jones is listed as a cook for Tom Smith who operated a 
restaurant at 912 E. 10th Street.  Malinda Jones is listed as a resident at that 
address. 

  NOTE:  The house is listed as 1304 Rosewood Avenue. 
 
NOTE:  Newspaper articles reveal that the current structure was built in 1926.  The home had 
been in existence on this site since 1913, but in an older house. 
 

 
News story on the opening of the Old Negro Woman’s Home 

Austin Statesman, September 18, 1926 
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News story on the fund appeal for the Old Negro Women’s Home 

Austin Statesman, September 18, 1926 
 
1924  Old Negro Women’s Home 
  Malinda Jones, matron 
  NOTE:  The house is listed as 1304 Rosewood Avenue. 
 
1922  Old Negro Women’s Home 
  Elizabeth Glasgow, matron 
  NOTE:  The house is listed as 1304 Rosewood Avenue. 
 
1920  Old Negro Women’s Home 
  Lula Banton, matron 
  NOTE:  The house is listed as 1304 Rosewood Avenue. 
 
1918  Old Negro Women’s Home 
  Katie Toliver, matron 
  NOTE:  The house is listed as 1304 Rosewood Avenue. 
 
1916  Old Negro Women’s Home 
  Rachel Washington, matron 
  NOTE:  The house is listed as 1304 Rosewood Avenue. 
 
1914  James T. Johnson 
  Abstractor and deputy county sheriff. 
  NOTE:  There is no listing for an Old Negro Women’s Home. 
  NOTE:  The house is listed as 1304 Rosewood Avenue. 
 
NOTE:  The listings for this address (1304 Rosewood Avenue) go back to the 1890s in the city 
directories.  James T. Johnson, an abstractor, deputy county sheriff, and deputy district court 
clerk, lived at this address in the early 1910s before it became the Old Negro Women’s Home.  
According to his 1944 obituary, James T. Johnson was renowned for his charity and 
benevolence.  Prior to James T. Johnson’s residency here, the house was the home of D. Hill 
Hart, the clerk for the U.S. Circuit and District Courts for the Western District of Texas from the 
1890s until around 1909. 
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Classified advertisement by D. Hart Hill for the sale of this house 

Austin Daily Statesman, July 4, 1909 
 
“Numerous black organizations catered to the health and social needs of African-American 
ghetto dwellers.  One charitable institution operated by African Americans was the Old Negro 
Women’s Home, originally located on E. 10th Street but later moved to Rosewood Avenue, in 
the heart of the East Austin black neighborhood.  When it opened in February, 1913, the 
building housed six elderly black women, some of whom had previously been living in “tumble-
down old shanties without conveniences of any kind.”  Although the home operated under the 
auspices of the United Charities, its executive board was composed entirely of African 
Americans; the chairman was Reuben S. Lovinggood, president of Samuel Huston College, and 
the secretary was William Tears, who ran a successful undertakers business.  The home was 
funded by contributions from black fraternal societies and churches.  An African-American 
women’s organization, the King’s Daughters, oversaw the daily operation of the home and 
eventually took on responsibility for raising the funds to keep it open, which they managed to do 
even during the Great Depression.” 

From Jason McDonald, Racial Dynamics in Early Twentieth-Century Austin Texas (Lanham, 
Maryland: Lexington Books, 2012). 

 
 
Census records: 
The 1920 U.S. Census shows Lula Banton, a 54-year old African-American widow at this 
address.  She is listed as the head of household and the matron of an old women’s home.  Also 
at this address, all of whom are listed as inmate boarders, are Margarita Mack, an 82-year old 
widow, Ella Gardner, a 92-year old widow, Eliza Williams, an 82-year old widow; Julia Rabb, a 
76-year old widow; and Martha Hancock, a 96-year old widow.  None of the women had an 
occupation listed, and all list the United States as their place of birth. 
 
The 1930 U.S. Census sows Malinda Jones as the matron at this address.  There were 4 
“lodgers,” Ella Henderson, a 78-year old widow; Ella Scoot, a 55-year old widow, who worked as 
a seamstress for a private family; Nancy Johnson, a 70-year old widow; and Dicey Levit, who 
had been born in Florida; her age is indecipherable. 
 
The 1940 U.S. Census shows Malinda Jones as a lodger at an unknown location, but which was 
a large African-American boarding house.  She was a 77-year old widow.  There were 19 other 
people, male and female, living at this address, most of whom had jobs, including yardman, 
maid, cook, and servant.  Malinda Jones is listed as a matron for a State Department. 
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King’s Daughters Old Negro Women’s Home / Home for the Aged (ca. 1913-1970) 

The home, originally located at 907 E 10th in 1913 and relocated to 1210 Rosewood by 
at least 1922, served as a retirement facility for elderly women until 1973. Both independent 
residents and women from the Texas State Hospital were residents there. The current structure 
also served as Negro Youth Association and YWCA headquarters as it expanded throughout 
the 20th century. By mid-century, the residential nursing facility had changed its name to the 
King’s Daughters Home for the Aged. 

In 1970, the building was transferred to Travis County as a possible emergency home 
for neglected children. It served as a daycare temporarily (“School for Children”). 1210 
Rosewood was the proposed site of an alternative school for children affected by the closures of 
Anderson and Kealing High Schools, a proposal which gained traction after a boycott by 
students in 1971 in protest of forced busing.  

 
By 1973, however, the home had been accepted by the Travis County MH & MR Special 

Services division and became “Gateway House,” a transitional living facility for men and women 
recovering from alcoholism.  
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Story on the founding of the Home for Aged Negro Women 

Austin Daily Statesman, March 11, 1913 
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Austin Daily Statesman, March 31, 1913 

This story references the address of the home as 907 E. 10th Street. 
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Austin Statesman, September 7, 1919 
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Austin Statesman, December 17, 1970 
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Water service permit for this address (1937) 

 
 

 
Building permit for a small frame building at this address by the Home for Colored Women 

(1942) 
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Building permit to the Colored Branch YWCA for alterations and repairs (1944) 

 

 
Building permit for a masonry addition to the rear of the building (1953) 

 

 
Building permit to repair the house (1979) 
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The 1922 Sanborn map shows the earlier (1890s) one-story house on this site and the older 
address of 1304 Rosewood Avenue.  This house had a porch or some other feature on the 
projecting bay on the front of the house and a projecting bay on the left (west) side of the house. 
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The current house (without its current rear additions) appears on the 1935 Sanborn map as the 

Old Negro Women’s Home. 
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The 1962 Sanborn map shows the same basic configuration as the 1935 map above, with the 

rear addition. 
 

 
 
 


